1989

Larry J. Zissi v. State Tax Commission of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT AND
DESCRIPTION OF THE NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS BELOW

This matter is before the Supreme Court on Petition for Review of an adverse determination by the Utah State Tax Commission in a formal adjudicative proceeding on Petitioner Larry Zissi's Petition for Redetermination of a jeopardy tax assessment against him under the provisions of the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act, Utah Code Annotated § 59-19-101 et seq. (1953, as amended).

The Supreme Court has jurisdiction over this Petition for Review pursuant to Utah Code Annotated § 63-46b-16 and Utah Code Annotated § 78-2-2(3)(e)(ii) (1953, as amended).

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Should the Tax Commission have granted Zissi's motion to suppress evidence of the pills on which the tax was based because their discovery was the result of an unconstitutional roadblock seizure?

2. Did the Tax Commission err in ruling that the amphetamines at issue were not taxable by weight?

3. Did the Tax Commission err in its construction the statutory term "dosage units"?

4. Does the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act violate Zissi's constitutional right to equal protection?

5. Is the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act unconstitutionally vague?

6. Does the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act violate

petitioner's right to freedom from self-incrimination?

7. Is the tax assessed in this case an unconstitutionally excessive fine?

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND STATUTES
BELIEVED DETERMINATIVE

Petitioner believes that the interpretation of the following statutes and constitutional provisions is determinative in this case. The complete text of the statutes and constitutional provisions cited is included in Addendum A attached at the end of this brief:

Utah Code Annotated § 59-19-103 (1953, as amended)

United States Constitution, Amendment IV

United States Constitution, Amendment V

United States Constitution, Amendment VIII

United States Constitution, Amendment XIV

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 7

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 9

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 12

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 14

Utah Constitution, Article 1, Section 24

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a petition for review of a determination of the State Tax Commission upholding a jeopardy assessment of \$22,000.00 in tax and \$22,000.00 in penalties against petitioner

Larry Zissi (hereinafter "Zissi") under Utah's Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act, U.C.A. § 59-19-101 et seq. (1953, as amended) (the "Stamp Tax").

The facts as found by the Tax Commission or, where no findings were made on factual issues, all relevant evidence on those issues, are as follows. On June 4, 1988, Zissi was stopped at a driver's license roadblock while driving his 1983 Chevrolet pickup truck. (Findings of Fact R.6). The roadblock was set up by five officers, including St. Doug Whitney and four deputies. (R.99). Sgt. Whitney was in charge of setting up the roadblock, and it was set up at his instigation. Sgt. Whitney is a sergeant on patrol with the Utah County Sheriff's Department. (R.101). It was Sgt. Whitney's decision to set up the roadblock (R.102). He gave his deputies verbal instructions to stop every vehicle for a driver's license and registration, to make sure that everything was current and up to date. No written instructions were given. He also told his deputies that if they found other violations to take appropriate action. That was the extent of the directions he gave. (R.102).

The roadblock was set up on State Road 73 at Fairfield, and was set up from 3:00 to 6:00 p.m. The deputies placed signs 100 yards before the roadblock which said "Sheriff's Office Roadblock Ahead." At the roadblock itself, there were

approximately eight pylon cones placed twenty to thirty feet apart. Then there was a cone with the sign "Sheriff's Roadblock Ahead." (R.98-100).

After Mr. Zissi's vehicle was stopped at the roadblock, one of the deputies smelled an odor of marijuana. (R.102). After directing Mr. Zissi to drive to the side of the road, Mr. Zissi handed over a baggy of marijuana. (R.103). The officers then searched the vehicle and located a shaving cream bag behind the driver's seat of the pickup (R.103). Inside that bag were found what appeared to be crosstop pills. (R.104). Wayne Holman of the Tax Commission later counted the pills and determined that there were more than 500 and there were some that had been broken in pieces in transport and some had become powdered fragments. He counted the total number as 519. (R.129).

Attached as Exhibit "B" to the Respondent's Brief submitted after the conclusion of the hearing was a document on Utah County Sheriff letterhead dated October 11, 1984, prepared by Lt. David Lamph regarding roadblocks. This document requires no need for establishment of a license and registration roadblock, places no restrictions on where or when such roadblocks will be instituted other than they are to be in a "safe location," places no restrictions on how to choose which cars will be stopped, and apparently allows driver's license and registration

roadblocks to be set up in the discretion of any sergeant on patrol in the field for the Utah County Sheriff's Department. (R.46-47).

After being advised by the Utah County Sheriff's Office of the seizure, the Utah State Tax Commission issued a jeopardy assessment against Mr. Zissi for tax and penalty totalling \$44,000.00. (Exhibit 8, R.195-198). U.C.A. § 59-19-103 provides in relevant part as follows:

- (1) A tax is imposed on marihuana and controlled substances as defined under this chapter at the following rates:
 - (a) . . .
 - (b) On each gram of controlled substance or each portion of a gram, \$200; and
 - (c) On each 50 dosage units of a controlled substance that is not sold by weight, or portion thereof, \$2,000.

The statute contains no definition of the term "dosage units." Although the Tax Commission is authorized to adopt rules necessary to enforce the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act, U.C.A. § 59-19-107(1), the Tax Commission has not issued any. (R.125).

In making its jeopardy assessment, the Tax Commission first determined that the tax should be assessed under Subparagraph (c) on the number of dosage units of a controlled substance that is not sold by weight, rather than under Subparagraph (b) according to the weight of the controlled substance.

The Tax Commission found that amphetamines such as these are sold as pills and not sold by weight. (Findings of Fact 13, R.7). Gary Nuffer of the Tax Commission testified that his only basis for assessing the pills in this case according to the number of pills was "in our dealings and in our policy or procedures that we've done this that these were not sold by weight. They were sold by units." (R.122).

Wayne Holman, an investigator for the Tax Commission, testified that amphetamines are sold by weight in powder form. He stated that if these pills had been ground into powder form, they would be taxed by weight. (R.128). He said they look at the form of the substance to determine whether it was sold by weight or otherwise. (R.128). He agreed he had no knowledge of whether the pills in this case had been sold by weight or by the number of pills. (R.128).

Loni DeLand, a criminal defense attorney and former narcotics agent, testified that amphetamines can be used by injection, inhalation, ingestion or by suppositories. They can be used any of these ways whether the amphetamines are purchased as a pill or as a powder. In order to inject them, you would have to grind up the pills into powder form. He testified that amphetamines are primarily sold by weight in powder form. He didn't recall purchasing pills by weight, but supposed they could be. (R.138).

Kendra Herlin, a narcotics agent called by the Tax Commission, testified that she had not seen amphetamine tablets sold by weight. (R.158). She said crystal methamphetamine powder is more expensive than pills. (R.169).

After determining that the amphetamines which had been seized should be taxed at the rate of \$2,000.00 per each 50 dosage units, the Tax Commission construed each pill as a "dosage unit" under the statute. (Findings of Fact 12, R.7).

Gary Nuffer's understanding of the term "dosage" is "what you would consume at one time." (R.123). But based on the advice of the Commission's investigator, Wayne Holman, he imposed a tax based on one pill being one dosage unit. (R.122). Mr. Nuffer said that the Commission would construe one pill to be one dosage unit regardless of the size of the pill. (R.124). Wayne Holman said he advised Mr. Nuffer that each pill is a dosage unit. (R.127). He said "by definition, . . . a dose would be something prescribed by a medical physician. And a unit, by definition, is one item." (R.127). He had no information on the quantity of amphetamines generally prescribed by a physician. (R.128).

Loni Deland was asked what dosage unit means, and said that depends to a degree on a person's tolerance. (R.139). Some people inject 1/2 gram in one dosage and sometimes more. He'd seen people take them by the pill form--probably as little

as 5 at a time on some occasions. Typically, people would buy 100 pills and soak the entire thing and inject it. (R.140). He testified that the term "dosage unit" would have a definite meaning for a legal drug. There is a legal methamphetamine on the market--Desoxyn. He said for the pills which were seized, there is no legal dosage unit, and that to him the dosage unit is what the abuser takes--1/2 gram is not unusual, and a truck driver will probably take somewhat less. He said in these pills, at 1/2 gram a dosage unit, there would be 5 dosage units. (R.140-41).

Neither of the dictionaries excerpted as exhibits had definitions for "dosage unit" or for "unit dose." (Exhibits 9 and 10, R. 199-206). Steadman's Medical Dictionary defines dosage as:

1. The giving of medicine or other therapeutic agent in prescribed amounts.
2. The determination of the proper dose of a remedy. Often incorrectly used for the word dose.

Webster's Third New International Dictionary defines dosage as including:

- 1.a. The amount of medicine or other therapeutic agent prescribed or proper for a given patient or illness. . .
- 2.a. Addition of some ingredient or application of or treatment with some agent in one or more measured doses

Both dictionaries defined a dose in essentially the same terms.

The Webster's Dictionary defined dose as:

The measured quantity of a medicine or other therapeutic agent to be taken at one time or in a period of time.

Steadman's Medical Dictionary defines unit as:

1. One, a single person or thing. 2. A standard of measure, weight or any other quality, by multiplications or fractions of which a scale or system is formed. 3. A group of persons or things considered as a whole because of mutual activities or functions.

Webster's Third New International Dictionary describes unit, in relevant part as:

1.a.(1): The first natural number; the number that is the least whole number and is expressed by the number one, (2) a single thing that constitutes an undivided whole. . . .(c) a determinate quantity as of length, time, heat, value, or housing, adopted as a standard of measurement for other quantities of the same kind.

The value of the pills seized was between \$75.00 and \$150.00. (R.139, 161).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Mr. Zissi's motion to suppress all evidence of the pills seized in this case should have been granted, and the jeopardy assessment for possession of the pills voided. The exclusionary rule applies in tax proceedings, and is especially applicable to this quasi-criminal tax proceeding, just as it applies in forfeiture proceedings. The seizure of Mr. Zissi and his vehicle at the roadblock in this case violated his

Fourth Amendment rights because his privacy rights were invaded at the unfettered discretion of officers in the field, who determined when, where, and how to set up the roadblock without any plan instituted by administrative level personnel.

Because the United States Supreme Court has not ruled on the issue presented, this Court should base its decision on Utah constitutional grounds. Further, there is no reason to allow an exception to the warrant requirement for roadblocks, and this Court should hold that a statute authorizing roadblocks and setting forth a procedure for obtaining warrants for roadblocks is required for a valid roadblock under the Utah Constitution.

Because of the evidence that amphetamines are a controlled substance which is sold by weight, it was improper to tax the amphetamines in this case on a per pill basis. The Tax Commission's construction of the Tax Stamp statute liberally, rather than strictly, construes the statute and yields a result which violates Mr. Zissi's right to equal protection by imposing disproportionate taxation on the same controlled substance depending only on the meaningless distinction of whether it is seized in pill or powder form. Since there is no evidence of the weight of the pills or that they were of taxable weight, the jeopardy assessment should be invalidated.

Even if these amphetamines should be taxed according to the number of "dosage units" they contain, a person of

ordinary intelligence would understand that term to mean the amount of a controlled substance which comprises a dosage. The Tax Commission adopted a liberal definition to maximize taxability, but that definition is known only to those in the medical profession. The interpretation that a dosage unit means one pill makes the statute in violation of Mr. Zissi's right to due process by adopting an unconstitutionally vague definition of the term "dosage units." The evidence shows the dosage for the pills involved to be at least five, and closer to 50 pills. The assessment against petitioner should be reduced to reflect this.

The Stamp Tax statute does not prohibit the Tax Commission from providing law enforcement authorities information relevant to determining the identity of stamp purchasers. It also requires the stamps to be affixed to the controlled substances they relate to. The purchase and display of the stamps create an appreciable risk of supplying a vital link in a prosecution for possession of controlled substances -- the identity of those in possession and their knowledge of the illegal nature of the substance. The Stamp Tax therefore violates Mr. Zissi's right to freedom from self-incrimination under the Utah and United States Constitutions.

The prohibitions against excessive fines found in the United States and Utah Constitutions apply with regard

to the essentially criminal Stamp Tax law. Because a person in possession of amphetamine pills is subject to a huge fine while a person in possession of the same quantity of amphetamine powder is not taxed, the Stamp Tax violates the principle of proportionality incorporated in the prohibition against excessive fines.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE STANDARD OF REVIEW

Utah Code Annotated §63-46b-16(4) gives guidance as to the standard of review of the Tax Commission's determinations of fact and of law. This Court should grant relief if, on the basis of the agency's record, Mr. Zissi has been prejudiced by any of the following:

(a) the agency action, or the statute or rule on which the agency action is based, is unconstitutional on its face or as applied;

. . .

(c) the agency has not decided all of the issues requiring resolution;

(d) the agency has erroneously interpreted or applied the law;

. . .

(g) the agency action is based upon a determination of fact, made or implied by the agency, that is not supported by substantial evidence when viewed in light of the whole record before the court.

The facts stated above marshall all evidence presented to the Commission on the factual questions impliedly determined against him. Scharf v. BMG Corp., 700 P.2d 1068 (Utah 1985).

II.

ALL EVIDENCE OF THE PILLS SEIZED IN
THIS CASE AND ON WHICH THE TAX IS BASED SHOULD BE
SUPPRESSED BECAUSE THEY ARE THE FRUIT OF AN
UNCONSTITUTIONAL ROADBLOCK SEIZURE

A. The Exclusionary Rule Applies in this Proceeding.

Courts have held that the Fourth Amendment exclusionary rule is applicable in a federal civil tax proceeding. Efriant Suriez, 58 T.C. 792 (1972); Pizzarello v. United States, 408 F.2d 579 (2d Cir. 1969); United States v. Blank, 261 F. Supp. 180 (N.D. Ohio 1966); Vander Linden v. United States, 502 F. Supp. 693 (S.D. Iowa 1980).

Policy reasons also favor application of the exclusionary rule in tax proceedings. Evidence relating to tax matters often depends on the most personal of a person's effects and papers, and would often be located in the home. The power of taxation is broad and those charged with enforcing it are often perceived as oppressive. The exclusionary rule should apply to prevent a positive incentive for Tax Commission and law enforcement authorities to violate constitutional rights of taxpayers in order to find evidence to raise tax revenues. Thus, the exclusionary rule should apply in state tax proceedings.

Particularly in this case for the enforcement of the Stamp Tax, the exclusionary rule should apply. In One 1958 Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania, 380 U.S. 693 (1965), the Supreme Court held that the exclusionary rule applies to civil forfeiture proceedings. The Supreme Court noted that the leading case on the subject of search and seizure is Boyd v. United States, 116 U.S. 616 (1886) which was itself not a criminal case but a proceeding by the United States to forfeit property. The Supreme Court stated that

A forfeiture proceeding is quasi-criminal in character. Its object, like a criminal proceeding, is to penalize for the commission of an offense against the law It would be anomalous indeed under these circumstances, to hold that in the criminal proceeding the illegally seized evidence is excludible, while in the forfeiture proceeding, requiring the determination that the criminal law has been violated, the same evidence would be admissible. One Plymouth 1958 Sedan v. Pennsylvania, supra at 700-701.

This unusual tax proceeding, like a forfeiture proceeding, involves an additional penalty imposed upon the illegal possession of controlled substances. The fact that the legislature has chosen to do so by a tax does not change the character of the proceeding. Just as the Supreme Court noted in the forfeiture situation, the penalties to be imposed upon petitioner by the tax and tax penalty in this case far exceed any penalties which could be criminally assessed against him for possession of the controlled substances or even the criminal penalty

for failure to obtain the illegal drug stamps. In this situation, particularly, it is clear that the exclusionary rule must apply.

B. The Roadblock Involved in this Case was an Unconstitutional Seizure, and the Evidence Resulting from that Seizure must be Suppressed.

In Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648 (1979), the Supreme Court held that a patrolman's stopping of a vehicle without reasonable suspicion to check for license and registration was an unconstitutional seizure, and that the evidence discovered as a result of the patrolman's seizing marijuana in plain view on the car floor must be suppressed. First, the Court held that the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments are implicated because stopping an automobile and detaining its occupants constitutes a "seizure" within the meaning of those amendments, even though the purpose of the stop is limited and the resulting detention quite brief. Id. at 654. The Court summarized its decision as follows:

We hold that except in those situations where there is at least articulable and reasonable suspicion that a motorist is unlicensed or that an automobile is not registered, or that either the vehicle or an occupant is otherwise subject to seizure for violation of law, stopping an automobile and detaining the driver in order to check his driver's license and registration of the automobile are unreasonable under the Fourth Amendment. This holding does not preclude the State of Delaware or other States from developing methods for spot checks that involve

less intrusion or that do not involve the unconstrained exercise of discretion. Questioning of all oncoming traffic at roadblock-type stops is one possible alternative. Id. at 664.

In reaching this decision, the Supreme Court stated that the permissibility of a particular law enforcement practice is judged by balancing its intrusion on the individual's Fourth Amendment interests against its promotion of legitimate governmental interests. Id. at 665. The Supreme Court recognized that the State had an interest in assuring the safety of its roadways, but held that discretionary spot checks of license and registration in service of those interests did not justify the intrusion upon Fourth Amendment interest which such stops entail. The Court noted that the primary method of enforcing traffic and vehicle safety regulations is acting upon observed violations, that drivers without licenses are presumably the less safe drivers whose propensities may well exhibit themselves, and that in the absence of empirical data to the contrary, "it must be assumed that finding an unlicensed driver among those who commit traffic violations is a much more likely event than finding an unlicensed driver by choosing randomly from the entire universe of drivers." Id. at 660.

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