1989

# Larry J. Zissi v. State Tax Commission of Utah : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

Zissi's hearing before the Commission was a civil tax proceeding. Zissi argues that it was a quasi-criminal hearing. The respondent contends criminal protections do not apply to a civil tax proceeding. Case law and rules of statutory construction show that tax portions of the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act are civil in nature.

The question of whether a penalty is civil or criminal is a matter of statutory construction that is analyzed on two levels. First, the Court should examine whether the legislature indicated a preference for one label or the other. Second, the statutory scheme should be examined to see if it is so punitive

in either purpose or effect as to negate the legislative label. The taxes and penalties collected by the Commission are clearly civil tax penalties. The Act is not so punitive in nature as to negate the civil penalties. Where both a civil and criminal penalty are found in a statute, the force of the argument that the civil penalty is really a criminal penalty is diluted. Both civil and criminal penalties are found in the Act.

The exclusionary rule does not apply to a civil tax proceeding. That form of relief is inconsistent with the history and development of the exclusionary rule on both the State and Federal levels. The rule should only be applied where it can deter violations of the Fourth Amendment. In this case, police officers conducted the search. They were not under the control of the Commission. Their primary goal was arrest and prosecution for criminal law violations, not tax law violations. The Commission does not punish for violations of criminal laws. Thus, the deterrent effect would be highly attenuated if the rule were to be applied in this case.

This Court has never articulated a state exclusionary rule for civil cases. Such a rule would be inconsistent with existing precedent. This Court should follow other state courts and reject the exclusionary rule in civil proceedings.

Zissi has not been compelled to provide self-incriminating evidence. His arguments fall outside the scope of

the incrimination privilege. The Act expressly provides that drug dealers need not give their name, address, social security number, or other identifying information on drug stamp purchase forms.

Zissi also argues that the tax is cruel and unusual punishment. His argument is inconsistent with Eighth Amendment jurisprudence. The Eighth Amendment has traditionally been used to prohibit the infliction of cruel and unusual punishment or excessive fines in the criminal context. Zissi has failed to provide Utah case law in support of an extension of Utah or Federal constitutional provisions to the civil arena.

Zissi's taxes were properly calculated according to the statute's language and intent. It is clear as enacted. Zissi has the burden of proving that his taxes were improperly calculated. He has not met that burden. The statute sets forth that amphetamines sold as units are to be taxed as units and not by weight. The Commission found that Zissi's amphetamines were sold as units. This Court has held that deference should be given to administrative agency findings of fact. It is irrelevant that Zissi's drugs could face a different taxing scheme if they were ground into powder form.

The statute taxes tablets by dosage units. The evidence before the Commission clearly showed that the term dosage unit means one tablet. Expert testimony supported the



Commission's finding that dosage unit means one tablet. Knowledge of the term dosage unit is common with anyone legally dealing with drugs. It is self-serving for Zissi to argue that because he has no medical background the term dosage unit is vague and unclear to him.

The Act treats Zissi similarly with all other drug dealers possessing drugs in tablet form. Even Zissi concedes that amphetamines that are in tablet form are sold in tablet form. Thus, the Commission was correct in taxing them in tablet form. Zissi has failed to make a showing that he has been singled out and treated differently than any other drug dealer possessing amphetamines in tablet form.

## ARGUMENT

### ISSUE I

#### The Hearing Before the Commission Was a Civil Proceeding.

The central inquiry to several of the issues presented in this proceeding is whether the penalties for violation of the Illegal Drug Stamp Tax Act, Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-101, ("the Act") are civil or criminal. That determination will govern what procedure applies, and what legal and constitutional standards should be used. Case law and rules of statutory construction establish that the tax portions of the Act are civil.

**A. Guidelines for Determining if Penalties Are Civil or Criminal.**

The U.S. Supreme Court has established guidelines for determining if penalties are civil or criminal. See U.S. v. Ward, 448 U.S. 242 (1980). Their approach is sound and should be followed by this Court. The question is a matter of statutory construction that is analyzed on two levels. Id. at 248. Those levels, as described by the Court are:

First, . . . whether Congress, in establishing the penalizing mechanism, indicated either expressly or impliedly a preference for one label or the other. Second, where Congress has indicated an intention to establish a civil penalty, we have inquired further whether the statutory scheme was so punitive either in purpose or effect as to negate that intention. In regard to this latter inquiry, we have noted that 'only the clearest proof could suffice to establish the unconstitutionality of a statute on such a ground.'

Id. at 248-9, (emphasis added, citations omitted) (quoting Fleming v. Nestor, 363 U.S. 603 (1960)).

**1. The Act Clearly Implies Both Separate Civil and Criminal Penalties.**

Under the first level of inquiry, the Act clearly implies that the tax penalties are civil penalties. Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-103 (Supp. 1988) sets forth the tax amount. See Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-103 (Supp. 1988). This is the civil portion of the penalty. Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-106(1)

establishes a 100% penalty on the unpaid taxes. This is also a civil penalty that is to be collected as part of the tax. Id.

It is clear that these are both civil penalties because the subsection immediately following them states: "In addition to the tax penalty imposed, a dealer distributing or possessing marihuana or controlled substances without affixing the appropriate stamps, labels, or other indicia is guilty of a third degree felony and is subject to a fine of not more than \$10,000 . . . ." Id. at § 59-19-106(2) (emphasis added). If the Legislature had intended the entire statute to impose solely a criminal or civil penalty, it would not have distinguished between the two by using the "in addition to the tax penalty imposed" language. Thus, the legislature clearly expressed a separate civil tax assessment.

**2. The Act Is Not So Punitive in Nature as to Negate the Civil Penalties.**

In determining whether a statute was "so punitive in nature to negate the civil penalties", the Supreme Court in U.S. v. Ward, (referring to Kennedy v. Mendoza-Martinez, 372 U.S. 144 (1963)), reaffirmed the seven factors, previously established, that have "prove[n] helpful in . . . consideration of similar questions . . . ." Ward at 249.

The seven factors as originally set forth in Mendoza-Martinez are:

[1] Whether the sanction involves an affirmative disability or restraint, [2] whether it has historically been regarded as a punishment, [3] whether it comes into play only on a finding of *scienter*, [4] whether its operation will promote the traditional aims of punishment -- retribution and deterrence, [5] whether the behavior to which it applies is already a crime, [6] whether an alternative purpose to which it may rationally be connected is assignable for it, and [7] whether it appears excessive in relation to the inquiry, and may often point in differing directions.

Mendoza-Martinez at 168-9 (emphasis in original, footnotes deleted).

When these factors are applied, it is clear that the Act is more civil in nature than penal. The U.S. Supreme Court has found that where both a civil and criminal penalty are found in the same statute, that fact dilutes the force of an argument that the civil penalty is really a criminal penalty. Ward at 250 (discussing Helvering v. Mitchell, 303 U.S. 391 (1938) (a 50% penalty for tax fraud was held to be civil)).

First, no affirmative disability or restraint applies. Tax on controlled substances is similar to taxes on alcohol and tobacco. See Utah Code Ann. at §§ 59-15-101, 59-16-101, 59-14-205. Second, there is no case law in support of the proposition that payment of tax has historically been viewed as a form of criminal punishment. Third, *scienter* is unnecessary under the Act for imposition of taxes. The statute requires

"transportation,"<sup>5</sup> but not "knowing" transportation for a civil tax violation to occur. Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-105(1) (Supp. 1988). Fourth, the traditional aims of retribution and deterrence are not served by the Act. The Act imposes statutorily fixed taxes and penalties on specific substances. See Utah Code Ann. at § 59-19-103. The taxes are imposed on the substances, and are not affected by a criminal conviction for distribution of a controlled substance. Fifth, the behavior to which the penalty applies is only a crime if the felony and fine aspect of § 59-19-106(2) (Supp. 1988) of the Act is applied. That provision is not within the jurisdiction of the Tax Commission. The tax is imposed on the substances; it is not related to a conviction for distribution of a controlled substance. Sixth, assessing a substance that clearly evades taxation is a proper legislative function.

The alternative purpose assigned to the civil penalty clearly is not excessive. The South Dakota Supreme Court was faced with a similar question in determining if a \$750 civil penalty was excessive for possession of less than one ounce of marijuana. See State v. Barber, 427 N.W.2d 375 (S.D. 1988).

That court reasoned:

[W]e find that the civil penalty . . . [for possession of marijuana] is not so clearly

---

<sup>5</sup> Alternatives to transportation are purchasing, acquiring, or importing. Utah Code Ann. § 59-19-105(1) (Supp. 1988).

excessive as to bear no relationship to the purpose for which it is imposed. Drug abuse is a peril to society and particularly to our youth. The costs to society in terms of the health and mental well-being and lost potential of young people involved in such activity are incapable of estimation. Further, in attempting to curb drug abuse, society is required to expend ever increasing financial resources in law enforcement and drug awareness and prevention campaigns. The civil penalty . . . for possession of marijuana is of but little recompense to society for these costs.

Id. at 377.

Only the clearest proof is sufficient to establish that the Act is so punitive as to be unconstitutional. Ward at 249. For these reasons, the Court should conclude that the Act's civil penalties are not criminal in nature. Thus, the hearing before the Commission was a civil proceeding.

## ISSUE II

### THE EXCLUSIONARY RULE DOES NOT APPLY TO A CIVIL PROCEEDING

#### A. Application of the Exclusionary Rule Would Be Incorrect in This Case.

The relief sought by the Petitioner is inconsistent with the history and development of the exclusionary rule on both the State and Federal levels. The exclusionary rule has never been applied to a civil case by the U.S. Supreme Court, nor does any precedent from that Court or the Utah Supreme Court exist stating that it should be applied to a civil proceeding on the state level.

1. History and Development of the Exclusionary Rule in the Utah State and Federal Courts.

Prior to the rule's creation, courts would not suppress pertinent evidence, although illegally obtained. See Adams v. New York, 192 U.S. 585, 595 (1904). This changed when the exclusionary rule was announced in Weeks v. U.S., 232 U.S. 383 (1914). The Court reasoned that without this judicial protection the Fourth Amendment right against unreasonable searches and seizures would become meaningless. Id. at 393. It stated that "The Fourth Amendment is not directed to individual misconduct of . . . officials. Its limitations reach the Federal Government and its agencies." Id. at 398.

However, because Weeks was not then binding on the states, the Utah State Supreme Court expressly rejected its application to state court proceedings. State v. Aime, 220 P. 704, 708 (Utah 1923); see also State v. Fair, 353 P.2d 615 (Utah 1960). The Utah Court reasoned that this constitutional right would be protected by subjecting the individual conducting the unreasonable search and seizure "to all consequences and penalties provided by law." Id. at 707. This rationale was directly contrary to the federal rule that was not directed at "individual misconduct".

However, this state independence came to an end when the U.S. Supreme Court announced that the exclusionary rule would

be binding on state courts. Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643 (1961). The underpinnings of that decision were that the exclusionary rule would protect "the imperative of judicial integrity" by compelling the government to comply with the "charter of its own existence". Id. at 658-9 (quoting Elkins v. U.S., 364 U.S. 206, 222 (1960)). In a later case, the Court made clear that "[j]udicial integrity clearly does not mean that the courts must never admit evidence obtained in violation of the Fourth Amendment." U.S. v. Janis, 428 U.S. 433, 458 n.35 (1976).

The Utah State Supreme Court was thus compelled to apply the rule it had expressly rejected in Aime. See State v. Jasso, 439 P.2d 844 (Utah 1968).

The rationale of "the imperative of judicial integrity," expressed by the Court in Mapp, was later eclipsed by a policy of deterrence. In Stone v. Powell, 428 U.S. 465 (1976) the Supreme Court specified that "[t]he primary justification for the exclusionary rule then is the deterrence of police conduct that violates Fourth Amendment Rights." Id. at 486. The Court restricted application of the rule "to those areas where its remedial objectives are thought most efficaciously served." Id. at 487-8 (quoting U.S. v. Calandra, 414 U.S. 338, 348 (1974)).

In a corresponding footnote, the Court cited a noted criminal law commentator: "[T]he rule is a needed, but



grud[g]ingly [sic] taken, medicament; no more should be swallowed than is needed to combat the disease . . . so many criminals must go free as will deter the constables from blundering . . . [however] the confines of necessity inflicts gratuitous harm on the public interest." Stone at 487 n.24 (citing to Amsterdam, Search, Seizure, and Section 2255: A Comment, 112 U. Pa.L.Rev. 378, 388-9 (1964)).

2. Application of the Exclusionary Rule to Civil Matters in Federal Cases.

In United States v. Janis, the U.S. Supreme Court was asked to apply the exclusionary rule to a tax proceeding. In Janis, the Los Angeles police obtained a warrant to search Janis's residence for bookmaking paraphernalia. Id. at 434. Cash and wagering records were seized. Id. at 436. A police officer informed the IRS of these records. Id. Based on this information Janis was assessed wagering taxes. Id. at 437. The IRS levied on Janis's cash that had been seized by the Los Angeles Police. Id.

A subsequent non-federal criminal action was brought, where Janis successfully suppressed the evidence seized by the Los Angeles Police Department; the judge ordered all items returned except the cash levied by the IRS. Id. at 437-8. Janis filed for a refund of the cash. Id. at 438. The IRS denied the request and a subsequent U.S. District Court action was filed by

Janis where he sought to suppress all evidence from which the assessment had been made. Id.

The Supreme Court held "that the judicially created exclusionary rule should not be extended to forbid the use in the civil proceeding of one sovereign of evidence seized by a criminal law enforcement agent of another sovereign." Id. at 459-60. The Court expressly stated: "In the complex and turbulent history of the rule, the Court never has applied it to exclude evidence from a civil proceeding, federal or state." Id. at 447 (footnote omitted, emphasis added). The Court expressly left the question open of the rules application where "intrasovereign" violations have taken place.<sup>6</sup> Id. at 456.

In reaching its conclusion, the court weighed the "likelihood of deterring the conduct of the state police . . . [against] the societal costs imposed by the exclusion . . . ." Id. at 454.

The Court reasoned that "the deterrent effect of the exclusion of relevant evidence is highly attenuated when the 'punishment' imposed upon the offending criminal enforcement officer is the removal of that evidence from a civil suit by or against a different sovereign." Id. at 458. The Court went on

---

<sup>6</sup> The Court stated: "[t]he seminal cases that apply the exclusionary rule to a civil proceeding involve "intrasovereign" violations,[] a situation we need not consider here." Janis at 456 (footnote omitted).

to state:

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